
 
 
 

CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 

 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday, July 19, 2016, 7:00 PM 

The Forum, 100 State Street 
 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Minutes of the June 21, 2016 Meeting 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Margaret Bredeson – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-23 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace the 

existing garage doors on the residential carriage house structure located at 837 Church Street. 

 

5. Anthony Jackson – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-16 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to repair various 

front porch features and to tuckpoint the chimney on the residential structure located at 327 

Vernon Avenue. 

 

6. Discussion of Potential Uses for Structure 627 Church Street 

 

7. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last Meeting 

 

8. Committee Reports 

 A. Education & Outreach Committee 

 B. Grant Writing Committee 

 C.  Site Visit Committee 

 

9. Items for Future Agendas 

 

10. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM 
the day before the meeting. 
    
Approved: Alex Morganroth, Planner 
   July 7, 2016 
 
**  Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please 
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 



 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016, 7:00 PM 
The Forum, 100 State Street 

 

1. Roll Call 

 Commissioner Blazer called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

 Commissioners Blazer, Joyce, Vater, Johnson, Vollmer, and Sloniker were present. 

 Commissioner Kaye and Truesdale were absent. 

 

2. Minutes of the March 15, 2016 Meeting 

Commissioners Joyce and Vater moved to approve the minutes. Motion carried, 6-0.  

 

3. Public Comments: Rob Lynch, son of the owner of the Aldrich House at 423 Bluff Street, 

gave a brief overview of his experience with rehabbing the house and voice his support for 

the rehabilitation of 627 Church Street.  

 

Bill Dorr, a resident in the College Park Historic District area, gave a summary of his 

experience with the house at 627 Church Street. In 2010, he and other residents helped clean 

up the house in order to find a buyer. 

 

John and Natalie Waltrous, owners of 805 Church Street, both expressed their disapproval of 

the demolition of 627 Church Street and urged the Commissioners and the Church to find a 

compromise that allowed the building to remain in place. 

 

Scott Lynch, the owner of the Aldrich House at 423 Bluff Street gave a summary of the rehab 

efforts at the Aldrich House and registered his support for saving the house at 627 Church 

Street. 

 

4. Scott Schneider (City of Beloit) - Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-19 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to construct 

a new garage, replace the front porch, construct an addition, and perform an overall 

rehabilitation of the residential structure located at 310 Euclid Avenue. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation.  

 

Commissioner Vollmer gave an overview of the Site Visit Committees walk-through. 

Commissioner Blazer described the current condition of the siding and stated that the 

proposed projects are appropriate for the level of deterioration. Mr. Schneider gave an 



overview of the siding condition and described the various siding options available. Mr. 

Schneider also described the proposed replacement windows. 

 

The Commissioners expressed their approval of the wrap-around porch as it would 

complement the facade of the house facing Bluff Street. 

 

Commissioners Joyce and Vollmer made a motion to approve the COA. Motion carried, 6-0. 

 

5. David and Deborah Amstutz – Certificate of Appropriateness 

 COA-2016-16 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to construct 

a storage shed on the residential property located at 710 Bluff Street. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation. 

 

The Commission expressed their support for shed Option 1. 

 

Mr. Amstutz asked the Commission if the COA could be amended to allow a gravel pad 

instead of a cement pad. 

 

Commissioner Vater made a motion to amend the COA to allow gravel instead of cement for 

the pad. Commissioner Joyce seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0. 

 

Commissioners Joyce and Vollmer made a motion to approve the amended COA. Motion 

carried, 6-0.  

 

6. Harold Pann – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-17 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to 

rehabilitate the front porch, including the floor, railings, and steps, on the residential structure 

located at 825 Park Avenue. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation. 

 

Mr. Pann explained how he would attached the railing to the house and reiterated that the 

overall look of the front staircase would not be different than the existing. 

 

Commissioners Joyce and Vollmer made a motion to approve the COA.  Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

7. Matthew Ruch – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-15 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to 

rehabilitate the garage, install storm windows, and perform various other repairs on the 

residential structure located at 822 Park Avenue. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation. 

 

Commissioner Joyce asked the applicant if he would need longer than one year to complete 

the projects. Mr. Ruch affirmed that he would need more time and suggested using the 

Wisconsin Historical Society deadline of five years from project start. 

 



Commissioner Joyce made a motion to amend the COA to extend the deadline to be identical 

to the deadline set by the Wisconsin Historical Society. Commissioner Vater seconded the 

motion. Motion carried, 6-0. 

 

Commissioner Vater asked the applicant to explain the methods he when replacing the 

brickwork around the proposed new egress. The applicant stated that he would make the top 

decorative bricks identical to what is existing. The applicant confirmed that the depth of the 

egress window would change, but not the width. 

 

Commissioner Vater made a motion to amend the COA to require the brickwork around the 

new egress match the brickwork around the remaining existing windows. Commissioner 

Joyce seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0. 

 

Commissioners Vollmer and Sloniker made a motion to approve the amended COA. Motion 

carried, 6-0 

 

8. Susan Behrens – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-14 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish 

the residential structure located at 627 Church Street. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation. 

 

The Commission asked Ms. Behrens to give a summary of the timeline of events that got the 

church to this point. Ms. Behrens described how the church used the structure until around 

2010 and have not been able to maintain the structure since due to the cost. She expressed the 

congregation’s and church board’s support that the house be demolished. 

 

Commissioner Joyce stated that demolition of the building is the last resort option and that 

the Commission would like to work with the applicant to find options that do not involve 

demolition. 

 

Commissioner Vater suggested monthly meetings with church board members and 

Commissioners to be held once a month over the course of the 10 month review period. Ms. 

Behrens agreed that meetings would be beneficial in finding an option. 

 

Commissioner Vollmer requested financial statements from the church in order to determine 

whether or not repairs were financially feasible. 

 

John Carroll, a resident of Beloit, expressed his support for saving the building. He wondered 

why the church wouldn’t open up the sale of the property to everyone as opposed to just 

certain buyers. 

 

Bill Dorr expressed his concern that the churches property rights were being infringed on, but 

also expressed support for saving the house. 

 

Commissioner Blazer asked Ms. Behrens for a tour of the property. Mr. Morganroth stated 

that he would set a meeting up at the house for a few Commissioners and church members. 

 



Commissioners Vater and Joyce moved to table the COA. Motion carried, 6-0. 

 

9. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last 

Meeting 

Mr. Morganroth reported that four new staff-approved COAs were issued since the last 

meeting. 

 

Mr. Morganroth informed the Commission that Legacy Architecture will hold a wrap-up 

meeting for the Intensive Survey on July 19, 2016 at 5:30pm in the Beloit Public Library. 

The meeting will be open to the public 

 

10. Committee Reports 

Education and Outreach Committee: Commissioner Johnson informed the Commission that 

she would be holding a walking tour of the west side on October 15, 2016. She also gave the 

Commissioner an update on the garden awards.  

 

Grant Writing Committee: None 

 

Site Visit Committee: Commissioner Vollmer informed the Commission that the committee 

visited all five properties. 

 

11. Items for Future Agendas 

None  

 

12. Adjournment 

Commissioners Joyce and Johnson moved to adjourn at 8:58pm. Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Alex Morganroth, Planner 

 Date Approved: July 15, 2016 



1
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: COA-2016-23

Applicant: Margaret Bredeson Owner: Margaret Bredeson Location: 837 Church Street

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residential

Parcel Size: .21 Acres

Request Overview:
Margaret Bredeson has submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace the garage doors on the
residential garage structure located 837 Church Street in the City of Beloit. Section 32.05 of the Historic Preservation
Ordinance grants the Landmarks Commission the authority to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to the
construction, reconstruction, or exterior alteration of any designated landmark, landmark site, or structure within an
historic district.

Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Key Issues:
 Structure Info

o Subject property is a contributing structure located in the College-Park Historic District.
o Dutch Colonial-style and constructed in 1925.
o High level of historic integrity remaining and main house is in excellent condition.

 Current Condition (Garage)
o Carriage House/Garage has four swinging wood doors, each with 3 over 3 paned windows.
o Doors show significant deterioration in areas, specifically on the bottom where water has caused rot and

discoloration.
 Although deterioration has affected the doors, it is the opinion of staff that they are not

unrepairable and may just need reinforcement, replacement in a few sections, and new hardware
in order to improve functionality.

 Cars not currently stored in garage due to difficulty of opening and closing doors.
 It is unknown whether the garage and garage doors are originally, but is likely due to the main

houses date of construction.

 Project Scope
o The applicant has requested permission to install a new overhang garage door.
o Proposed overhead door (see attached spec sheet) is 16’ x 7’ and included a double row of windows.
o White in color with black heavy gauge galvanized steel hardware.
o Exterior manufactured to mimic wood grain.
o Contractor would reinforce or install a new header which would not be visible from the exterior.
o New garage door would add functionality to the garage.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when
evaluating COA applications. The attached COA Checklist evaluates the completed work against the general
review criteria included in the Ordinance.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance also establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in
evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application.

o (1) Architectural Details:
 The applicant is proposing a garage door replacement that will look historic from the curb due to

the windows, hardware, and faux wood grain texture. However, the proposed door does not
match the material or exact style of the existing doors. Although the door does not technically
meet this criterion, the proposed door would not necessarily detract from the character of the
landmark in the historic district.



2
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace the swing
garage doors with an overhead door on the residential garage structure located 837 Church Street, based on the
standards and criteria contained in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions:

1. The completed work shall be consistent with the scope of work outlined by the applicant.
2. All work shall be done in a workman like manner and be consistent with the standards provided by the Secretary

of the Interior.
3. All work shall be completed by July 19, 2017.
4. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to

the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of correction orders or
citations.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey, Photos, Project Specifications, COA General Criteria
Checklist



3
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street



4
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

COA Application



5
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street



6
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

1981 Intensive Survey



7
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

Garage

Exterior Photos



8
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

Garage Door Replacement



9
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street



10
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street



11
COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street

Planning and Building Services Division
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609

For property located at: 837 Church Street

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA
YES NO N/A

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a
property that requires alteration for use other than for its originally intended
purpose?

X

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a
building, structure or site? The removal or alteration of any historic material
or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

The existing doors on the garage likely represent a distinguishing original
quality, although it is not known for sure if the garage or doors are
original. Although they may represent a distinguishing quality on the
garage, they are rather insignificant when compared the principal
structure.

X X

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather than
trying to create an earlier or later appearance? X
Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development of a
building over time that may have acquired significance in their own right? X
Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or
examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure or
site?

X

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated architectural
features, wherever possible? If replacement is necessary, the new material
should match the material being replaced in composition, design color, texture
and other visual qualities.

Proposed new garage door does not match the existing in composition, but
does match in design color, texture, and other visual qualities.

X X

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will
damage the surface of the historic building?

X

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve
archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project?

X

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does this
design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material and is the
design compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the
property and neighborhood?

X

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that if
such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential
form and integrity of the building would be unimpaired?

X

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST



1
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: COA-2016-24

Applicant: Anthony Jackson Owner: Neighborly Home Rentals,
LLC

Location: 327 Vernon Avenue

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Vacant Single-
Family Residential

Parcel Size: .24 Acres

Request Overview:
Anthony Jackson, on behalf of Neighborly Home Rentals, LLC, has submitted an application for a Certificate of
Appropriateness to rehabilitate the front porch on the residential structure located at 327 Vernon Ave in the City of Beloit.
Section 32.05 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks Commission the authority to issue a
Certificate of Appropriateness prior to the construction, reconstruction, or exterior alteration of any designated landmark,
landmark site, or structure within an historic district.

Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Key Issues:
 Structure Info

o Subject property is a contributing structure located in the Bluff Street Historic District.
o Brasstown Cottage-style constructed in 1883.
o House was noted as being in “excellent” condition in 1981 Survey after rehab in 1975. Structure has

experienced moderate deterioration of certain features since then.

 Current Condition (Porch)
o Porch railings, treads/risers, decking, and support posts have experienced mild to severe rotting.
o Rot has caused the railings to become unstable.
o Decking has started to buckle and present a safety issue.

 Project Scope (see attached scope from Wiser Home Improvement and Repair.
o Removal of existing deck boards, treads, risers, handrails, and trim boards.
o Installation of new 3 step pressured treated stair stringers, total of four.
o Installation of three 2” x 12” x 8’ pressure treated stair treads and three 1” x 8” by 8’ treated risers.
o Installation of 1 1/4” x 6” tongue and groove deck boards.
o Wrap new posts in 1” x 4” treated material.
o Installation of four new hand rails with existing details cut in out of 2” x 4” material

 Will paint or stain to match existing after drying for 6 -12 months.
o All wood material used in project is pressure treated select pine.
o All decorative details will be cut and restored to reflect its original state.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when
evaluating COA applications. The attached COA Checklist evaluates the completed work against the general
review criteria included in the Ordinance.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance also establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in
evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application.

o (1) Architectural Details:
 The applicant is proposing a complete rehab of the front porch. If completed as described, the

proposed work will result in a new front porch that matches the existing in material, texture, style,
and overall visual qualities. It is essential that the decorative elements of the porch be restored or
recreated in order to retain the historic integrity of the front façade. The project would therefore
be compatible with the original architectural style and charter of the landmark in the historic
district.



2
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to rehabilitate the
front porch on the residential structure located at 327 Vernon Avenue, based on the standards and criteria contained in
the Historic Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions:

1. The completed work shall be consistent with the scope of work outlined by the applicant.
2. All work shall be done in a workman like manner and be consistent with the standards provided by the Secretary

of the Interior.
3. The completed work shall be painted or stained within 12 months of project completion in order to match the

existing colors.
4. The applicant shall exactly recreate all architectural details on the existing porch including but not limited to the

railings, balusters, stair treads, risers, support posts, and trim boards.
5. The posts shall be wrapped in treated pine.
6. The applicant shall use tongue and groove deck boards when replacing the existing deck boards.
7. All work shall be completed by July 19, 2017.
8. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to

the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of correction orders or
citations.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey, Photos, Project Specifications, COA General Criteria
Checklist



3
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



4
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

COA Application



5
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



6
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

1981 Intensive Survey



7
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

Exterior Photos



8
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



9
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



10
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



11
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave



12
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

Scope of Work



13
COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave

Planning and Building Services Division
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609

For property located at: 837 Church Street

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA
YES NO N/A

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a
property that requires alteration for use other than for its originally intended
purpose?

X

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a
building, structure or site? The removal or alteration of any historic material
or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

X

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather than
trying to create an earlier or later appearance? X
Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development of a
building over time that may have acquired significance in their own right? X
Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or
examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure or
site?

X

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated architectural
features, wherever possible? If replacement is necessary, the new material
should match the material being replaced in composition, design color, texture
and other visual qualities.

X

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will
damage the surface of the historic building?

X

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve
archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project?

X

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does this
design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material and is the
design compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the
property and neighborhood?

X

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that if
such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential
form and integrity of the building would be unimpaired?

X

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST


	7-19-16.pdf
	6-21-16.pdf
	COA-2016-23, 837 Church Street, Garage Door Replacement.pdf
	COA-2016-24, 327 Vernon Ave, Front Porch Rehab.pdf

